
  
  

  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  MMeeeettiinngg  

MMaayy  55,,  22002255  
  
  
  
  

  



May 1, 2025  3:26:21 PM 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MAY 5, 2025 

COMMISSIONERS ROOM 
116 ADAMS ST. 

 PLYMOUTH, NC 
 

  
  
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Phelps 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
    
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  April 7, 2025  
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) RESO 2025-006 Proclamation EMS Week 
d) RESO 2025-007 Proclamation Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week 
e) RESO 2025-008 Proclamation National Police Week 2025 
f) RESO 2025-009 Proclamation Older Americans Month 
g) DOT Right-of-Way Agreement 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Department Head Update and Position Reclassification, Tax Office, Ms. Sherri 

Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 4 6:35 PM Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
   
Item 5 6:45 PM  Local Match Request for UTV Purchase, Mr. Chris Respess, Soil & Water Tech 
 
Item 6 6:55 PM Washington County Recommended FY26 Budget Presentation, Mr. Curtis Potter, 
   CM/CA  
 
Item 7 7:35 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers: Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 
Item 8 7:45 PM Other Items by Commissioners or Staff 

a)  Capital Project Update, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 

Item 9 7:55 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
 

RECESS to May 19, 2025 @ 6:00 PM for Budget Public Hearing 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Regular Session Minutes: April 7, 2025 See attached at the very end of this package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
 See attached.  
 

c) RESO 2025-006 Proclamation EMS Week 
 See attached. 
 

d) RESO 2025-007 Proclamation Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week 
 See attached. 
 

e) RESO 2025-008 Proclamation National Police Week 2025 
 See attached. 
 

f) RESO 2025-009 Proclamation Older Americans Month 
 See attached. 
 
g)  DOT Right-of-Way 







Washington County Resolution 2025-006 Page 1 of 1  

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-006 

EMS WEEK PROCLAMATION 
TO DESIGNATE THE WEEK OF MAY 18-24, 2025, AS 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK (EMS WEEK) 
 

WHEREAS, emergency medical services is a vital public service; and 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide lifesaving care to 
those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and recovery rate of 
those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

WHEREAS, emergency medical services fills healthcare gaps by providing important, out-of- hospital 
care, including preventative medicine, follow-up care, and access to telemedicine; and 

WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of first responders, emergency medical 
technicians, paramedics, emergency medical dispatchers, firefighters, police officers, educators, administrators, 
pre-hospital nurses, emergency nurses, emergency physicians, trained members of the public, and other out of 
hospital medical care providers; and 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or volunteer, engage in 
thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to enhance their lifesaving skills; and 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of emergency medical 
services providers by designating the Emergency Medical Services Week; now 

THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of Commissioners, in recognition of this event do hereby 
proclaim the week of May 18 - 24, 2025, as 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK 

The 51st anniversary of EMS Week theme is EMS WEEK: We Care. For Everyone. We encourage the 
community to observe this week with appropriate programs, ceremonies, and activities in honor of the EMS 
profession and the essential service it provides. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of  2025. 
 

                  Carol V. Phelps, Chair  
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST:   
       Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC  
                Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2025-007 
Page 1 of 1  

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-007 
PROCLAMATION 

CLERKS TO THE BOARDS OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS WEEK 
May 4 - 10, 2025 

 

WHEREAS, the role of the Clerk to the Board of County Commissioners is crucial for 
maintaining an informed community and facilitating effective local governance through communication 
among citizens, governing bodies, and administrative departments; and 

WHEREAS, the position of Clerk, one of the oldest in local government, continues to be 
essential as the official recordkeepers of their counties, with responsibilities that are deeply rooted in 
history; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 153A-111 requires every board of County 
Commissioners to appoint or designate a Clerk to the Board to perform any duties that may be required 
by law or the Board of Commissioners including, but not limited to, the preparation, filing, and 
protection of local government records, which are vital for accountability and transparency; and 

WHEREAS, Clerks enhance their professional skills through active participation in the North 
Carolina Association of County Clerks to Boards of Commissioners, which, in partnership with the 
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Government and the International Institute of 
Municipal Clerks, offers nationally recognized certification programs and continuous professional 
education; and 

WHEREAS, Clerks, through their dedication to professional development, not only improve the 
efficacy of their offices but also bring positive recognition to their Counties by participating in advanced 
education and obtaining profession related certifications.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Washington County Board of Commissioners 
that May 4 - 10, 2025, will be recognized as “Clerks to the Boards of County Commissioners Week” in 
Washington County and extends its appreciation to Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and to all County Clerks 
for the vital services they perform and their exemplary dedication to the County they represent.  

 
ADOPTED this  day of  2025. 
 

                  Carol V. Phelps, Chair  
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 

ATTEST:   
       Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC  
                Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2025-008 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-008 
PROCLAMATION 

 
RECOGNIZING NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 2025  

HONORING AND REMEMBERING OUR FALLEN LAW ENFORCEMENT 
OFFICERS  

WHEREAS, there are more than 800,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities 
across the United States, including the dedicated members of the Washington County Sheriff's Office; 

WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1786, there are currently more than 24,000 law 
enforcement officers in the United States have made the ultimate sacrifice and been killed in the line of 
duty; 

WHEREAS, the names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls of the 
National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, DC; 

WHEREAS, new names of fallen heroes are being added to the National Law Enforcement 
Officers Memorial this spring, including 148 officers killed in 2024 and 152 officers killed in previous 
years; 

WHEREAS, the service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be honored 
during the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund’s 37th Candlelight Vigil, on the evening 
of May 13, 2025; 

WHEREAS, the Candlelight Vigil is part of National Police Week, which will be observed this 
year May 11th -17th; 

WHEREAS, May 15th is designated as Peace Officers Memorial Day, in honor of all fallen 
officers and their families and U.S. flags should be flown at half-staff; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Washington County Board of Commissioners will 
observe May 11-17, 2025, as National Police Week in Washington County, and publicly salutes the 
service of law enforcement officers in our community and in communities across the nation. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of  2025. 
 

                  Carol V. Phelps, Chair  
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 

ATTEST:   
       Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC  
                Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2025-009 Page 1 of 1  

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-009 

 
OLDER AMERICANS MONTH 2025 

 
WHEREAS, May is Older Americans Month, a time for us to recognize and honor Washington 

County’s older adults and their immense influence on every facet of American society; and 
 
WHEREAS, through their wealth of life experience and wisdom, older adults guide our younger 

generations and carry forward abundant cultural and historical knowledge; and 
 

 WHEREAS, older Americans improve our communities through intergenerational relationships,  
community service, civic engagement, and many other activities; and 

 
WHEREAS, communities benefit when people of all ages, abilities, and backgrounds have the 

opportunity to participate and live independently; and 
 

             WHEREAS, Washington County must ensure that older Americans have the resources and support 
needed to stay involved in their communities — reflecting our commitment to inclusivity and connectedness; 
and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, Washington County Board of County Commissioners do hereby proclaim May 

2025 as Older Americans Month. This year's theme, "Flip the Script on Aging,” focuses on transforming how 
society perceives, talks about, and approaches aging. It encourages individuals and communities to challenge 
stereotypes and dispel misconceptions. 
 

FURTHERMORE, Washington County Board of County Commissioners call upon all residents to 
join me in recognizing the contributions of our older citizens and promoting programs and activities that foster 
connection, inclusion, and support for older adults. 

 
ADOPTED this  day of  2025. 
 
 

                  Carol V. Phelps, Chair  
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

ATTEST:   
       Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC  
                Clerk to the Board 



FORM R/W 16.1 (Rev. February 2021) 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
ROUTE PROJECT COUNTY OF 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

-AND-

RIGHT OF WAY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 

PRIMARY AND SECONDARY HIGHWAYS 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the day of 20 by and between the Department 
of Transportation, party of the first part; and 

party of the second part, 

W I T N E S S E T H 

THAT WHEREAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road designated as 

Route(s)       , located 

with the construction and/or erection of: 

WHEREAS, it is to the material advantage of the party of the second part to effect this encroachment, and the party of 
the first part in the exercise of authority conferred upon it by statute, is willing to permit the encroachment within the limits of the 
right of way as indicated, subject to the conditions of this agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED that the party of the first part hereby grants to the party of the second part the right 
and privilege to make this encroachment as shown on attached plan sheet(s), specifications and special provisions which are 
made a part hereof upon the following conditions, to wit: 

That the installation, operation, and maintenance of the above described facility will be accomplished in accordance with the party of 
the first part’s latest UTILITIES ACCOMMODATIONS MANUAL, and such revisions and amendments thereto as may be in effect at the 
date of this agreement.  Information as to these policies and procedures may be obtained from the Division Engineer or State Utilities 
Manager of the party of the first part. 

That the said party of the second part binds and obligates himself to install and maintain the encroaching facility in such safe and 
proper condition that it will not interfere with or endanger travel upon said highway, nor obstruct nor interfere with the proper maintenance 
thereof, to reimburse the party of the first part for the cost incurred for any repairs or maintenance to its roadways and structures 
necessary due to the installation and existence of the facilities of the party of the second part, and if at any time the party of the first part 
shall require the removal of or changes in the location of the said facilities, that the said party of the second part binds himself, his 
successors and assigns, to promptly remove or alter the said facilities, in order to conform to the said requirement, without any cost to the 
party of the first part.  

That the party of the second part agrees to provide during construction and any subsequent maintenance proper signs, signal l ights, 
flagmen and other warning devices for the protection of traffic in conformance with the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
for Streets and Highways and Amendments or Supplements thereto.  Information as to the above rules and regulations may be obtained 
from the Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 

That the party of the second part hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the party of the first part from all damages and 
claims for damage that may arise by reason of the installation and maintenance of this encroachment. 

That the party of the second part agrees to restore all areas disturbed during installation and maintenance to the satisfaction of the 
Division Engineer of the party of the first part.  The party of the second part agrees to exercise every reasonable precaution during 
construction and maintenance to prevent eroding of soil; silting or pollution of rivers, streams, lakes, reservoirs, other water 
impoundments, ground surfaces or other property; or pollution of the air.  There shall be compliance with applicable rules and regulations 
of the North Carolina Division of Environmental Management, North Carolina Sedimentation Control Commission, and with ordinances 
and regulations of various counties, municipalities and other official agencies relating to pollution prevention and control.  When any 
installation or maintenance operation disturbs the ground surface and existing ground cover, the party of the second part agrees to 
remove and replace the sod or otherwise reestablish the grass cover to meet the satisfaction of the Division Engineer of the party of the 
first part. 

That the party of the second part agrees to assume the actual cost of any inspection of the work considered to be necessary by the 
Division Engineer of the party of the first part. 

That the party of the second part agrees to have available at the construction site, at all times during construction, a copy of this 
agreement showing evidence of approval by the party of the first part.  The party of the first part reserves the right to stop all work unless 
evidence of approval can be shown. 

Provided the work contained in this agreement is being performed on a completed highway open to traffic; the party of the second part 
agrees to give written notice to the Division Engineer of the party of the first part when all work contained herein has been completed.  
Unless specifically requested by the party of the first part, written notice of completion of work on highway projects under construction will 
not be required. 

That in the case of noncompliance with the terms of this agreement by the party of the second part, the party of the first part reserves 
the right to stop all work until the facility has been brought into compliance or removed from the right of way at no cost to the party of the 
first part. 

That it is agreed by both parties that this agreement shall become void if actual construction of the work contemplated herein is not 
begun within one (1) year from the date of authorization by the party of the first part unless written waiver is secured by the party of the 
second part from the party of the first part. 

During the performance of this contract, the second party, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as 
the “contractor”), agrees as follows: 

a. Compliance with Regulations:  The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-
assisted programs of the U. S. Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be
amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and
made a part of this contract.

b. Nondiscrimination:  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials



and leases of equipment.  The contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by 
Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B 
of the Regulations. 

c. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In all solicitations either by competitive
bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of
materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the
contractor’s obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or
national origin.

d. Information and Reports:  The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or directives
issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its
facilities as may be determined by the Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent
to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives.  Where any information required of a contractor is in the
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to the
Department of Transportation, or the Federal Highway Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has
made to obtain the information.

e. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this
contract, the Department of Transportation shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration
may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to,

(1) withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or
(2) cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

f. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs “a” through “f” in every subcontract,
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued
pursuant thereto.  The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Department
of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that, in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with,
litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the Department of
Transportation to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and, in addition, the contractor may request
the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

R/W (161) : Party of the Second Part certifies that this agreement is true and accurate copy of the form 
R/W (161) incorporating all revisions to date. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

BY: 
DIVISION ENGINEER 

ATTEST OR WITNESS: 

Second Party 

INSTRUCTIONS 

When the applicant is a corporation or a municipality, this agreement must have the corporate seal and be attested by the corporation 
secretary or by the empowered city official, unless a waiver of corporate seal and attestation by the secretary or by the empowered City 
official is on file in the Raleigh office of the State Utilities Manager.  In the space provided in this agreement for execution, the name of 
the corporation or municipality shall be typed above the name, and title of all persons signing the agreement should be typed directly 
below their signature. 

When the applicant is not a corporation, then his signature must be witnessed by one person.  The address should be included in this 
agreement and the names of all persons signing the agreement should be typed directly below their signature. 

This agreement must be accompanied, in the form of an attachment, by plans or drawings showing the following applicable information: 

1. All roadways and ramps.
2. Right of way lines and where applicable, the control of access lines.
3. Location of the existing and/or proposed encroachment.
4. Length, size and type of encroachment.
5. Method of installation.
6. Dimensions showing the distance from the encroachment to edge of pavement, shoulders, etc.
7. Location by highway survey station number.  If station number cannot be obtained, location should be shown by distance from

some identifiable point, such as a bridge, road, intersection, etc.  (To assist in preparation of the encroachment plan, the
Department’s roadway plans may be seen at the various Highway Division Offices, or at the Raleigh office.)

8. Drainage structures or bridges if affected by encroachment (show vertical and horizontal dimensions from encroachment to
nearest part of structure).

9. Method of attachment to drainage structures or bridges.
10. Manhole design.
11. On underground utilities, the depth of bury under all traveled lanes, shoulders, ditches, sidewalks, etc.
12. Length, size and type of encasement where required.
13. On underground crossings, notation as to method of crossing - boring and jacking, open cut, etc.
14. Location of vents.
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
1. Any attachment to a bridge or other drainage structure must be approved by the State Utilities Manager in Raleigh prior to

submission of encroachment agreement to the Division Engineer.
2. All crossings should be as near as possible normal to the centerline of the highway.
3. Minimum vertical clearances of overhead wires and cables above all roadways must conform to clearances set out in the

National Electric Safety Code.
4. Encasements shall extend from ditch line to ditch line in cut sections and 5’ beyond toe of slopes in fill sections.
5. All vents should be extended to the right of way line or as otherwise required by the Department.
6. All pipe encasements as to material and strength shall meet the standards and specifications of the Department.
7. Any special provisions or specifications as to the performance of the work or the method of construction that may be required by

the Department must be shown on a separate sheet attached to encroachment agreement provided that such information cannot
be shown on plans or drawings.

8. The Department’s Division Engineer should be given notice by the applicant prior to actual starting of installation included in this
agreement.



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Departmental Information Update—Tax Office, Ms. Sherri Wilkins,  

Tax Administrator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This month, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator will be giving you an update on the 
following items along with asking for a reclassification of a  position. 
 

- Keystone Software Implementation Update (hopefully with an updated timeline) 
- Overview and update of current progress on year-end close out processes  
- FY26 Proposal to reclassify Deputy Tax Administrator (Currently set at Grade 

22) to a Tax Analyst (Proposed by SW at :Grade 20) 
o I am providing a draft proposed position description for the Tax Analyst 

position from SW 
o A proposed Tax Org Chart from SW 
o A Primary Assigned Duties List from SW 

 
 
If you have a request to hear from a certain department, please contact the Clerk. 
 
Month  of 2025  Department   Director    
JAN Senior Center   Renee’ Collier  
FEB Soil & Water   Chris Respass 
MAR  Sheriff’s Office  Sheriff Barnes/Chief Deputy Norman 
APR 
MAY Tax Office   Sherri Wilkins 
JUNE   
JULY   
AUG   
SEPT   



OCT    
NOV   
DEC 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Month of 2024  Department   Director    
JAN    
FEB Sheriff’s Office  Arlo Norman 
MAR  Elections   Dora Bell 
APR 
MAY 
JUNE Senior Center   Renee’ Collier 
JULY Soil & Water   Chris Respess 
AUG Facilities   Ricky Young 
SEPT Utilities   Lee Sasser 
OCT Tax Office   Sherri Wilkins  
NOV Cooperative Ext.  Rebecca Liverman 
DEC 
 
 

 
List of Departments 

 
  Planning/Inspections  Human Resources 
  EM    Tax  
  EMS    Soil & Water 
  Elections   Utilities 
  Detention   DSS 
  Airport    Facilities 
  Landfill   TTA 
  Finance   Library 
  Register of Deeds  Soil & Water 
  MTW    Sheriff’s Office 
  Senior Center   IT 
  Recreation   E911 
 
 













 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Motion to convene as the Board of Equalization and Review (E & R) 
 
b) Hearing of Appeals 

As of the preparation of this agenda package, Sherri Wilkins, Tax 
Administrator, has informed the County Manager’s Office that there are no 
appeals at this time. 

 
c) Motion to adjourn the Board of E & R. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 5 
 
DATE: May 5, 2025 

ITEM: Local Match Request for UTV Purchase, Mr. Chris Respess, 
Soil & Water Tech 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 
 Mr. Chris Respess, Soil & Water Tech, will speak to the Board asking for assistance 
for funds for a UTV for his department.   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: VOTE to Approve the Utilization and Transfer of 
($15,000) from the Aquatic Weed Spraying Line(30-8000-600) to a Capital Outlay Line to 
combine with grant funds to purchase a UTV for the Drainage Department within this budget 
year (FY25).  
 
 
 Please see attached memo and presentation.   

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 



Agenda Item Memo for Regular Board Meeting 20250505 Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:           April 30th, 2025        MEETING Date: May 5th, 2025   ITEM:    
SUBJECT:                    S.t.r.a.p Funds 15% Admin Fee Purchase of UTV   
DEPARTMENT           Soil and Water/Drainage Department 
FROM:            Christopher Respess 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Power Point Labeled UTV Discussion  

PURPOSE: To seek Board approval to allocate $15,000 in local drainage funds to combine with around $33,000 grant funds 
to facilitate the purchase of a new multi-purpose high-quality Can-Am Defender UTV before the end of FY25. 
 
BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS:  

• The S.t.r.a.p. grant provided funding of $259,286.00 to complete snagging and clearing on the Waterways of 
Washington County. At this point $219,000 of that total has been encumbered and work completed equaling about 
8.9 miles of waterways completed in Washington County. With all the sections completed that were considered in 
the grant project we have $32,825 we can use to purchase a piece of equipment for Washington County to utilize 
within the Drainage Department. 

• This specific model of UTV offers more abilities than the competing models due to accessories, fuel mileage, and 
cross benefits of use in the Emergency Management Department, if need be, along with being the same model as the 
ones already owned by the Emergency Management Department. This grant provides the opportunity to purchase a 
secondary vehicle for the department along with added capabilities to assist in maintenance of service right of ways 
along with inspections. 

   
 
SUMMARY OF KEY FEATURES: 

1. Purpose and Scope: 15% of the total funds encumbered were intended to be used to purchase a UTV for the 
Drainage Department to increase operational abilities.   

2. Concept of Operations: 8.85 Miles of Waterways here in Washington County have been Snagged and Cleared and 
needs to be monitored to keep a standard of quality. This UTV allows access to areas that otherwise would require a 
swap in equipment to access. 

3. 15% Requirements: $219,000.00 = $32,825 available to purchase UTV. 
4. Cost of Operation: Reduction of overlapping trips to the same area of the county due to equipment ability 

restrictions being reduced. 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
CAROL V. PHELPS, CHAIR 

JOHN C. SPRUILL, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

ANN C. KEYES  

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo for Regular Board Meeting 20250505 Page 2 of 2 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: This piece of equipment will require an investment from local funds of $15,000 that would have 
cost the Department over $47,000 if purchased on its own. The department would like to transfer the unencumbered funds 
from the Aquatic Weed Spraying Budget Line (30-8000-600), which has $20,000 to the Capital Outlay Line to combine 
with the grant funds to cover the purchase. These funds were not expended due to the timing of the contract and the ending of 
the fiscal year. Adjustments have been made to put bids out before the new budget year so that work can begin when the new 
budget passes, providing more applicable days for completing work. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  VOTE to 

1. Approve: Approve the Utilization and Transfer of ($15,000) from the Aquatic Weed Spraying Line(30-8000-600) to 
a Capital Outlay Line to combine with grant funds to purchase a UTV for the Drainage Department within this budget 
year (FY25). 



UTV Purchase 
Discussion

• The S.t.r.a.p. Grant is providing 
$32,825 towards the purchase 
of the Can-Am Defender Max. 

• The purchase price of the 
Defender, plus taxes, 
maintenance (wear and tear) 
will be in the range of $47,825.

• The county can make an  
investment of $15,000 into a 
piece of equipment that would 
have cost in the $47,000 range.



Utilization of the 
Defender Max on 
Maul Creek

• Intentions are to purchase a rear mounted mower 
for the UTV  in 2027 year’s budget and utilize the 
capabilities to maintain Maul Creek and reduce 
inputs of $5,000 or more to mow the right-of-way 
when utilizing a contractor.

• The price of the mower is $7,000 meaning that 
after two times of mowing Maul Creek the mower 
has paid for itself and the UTV is starting to pay for
itself.

• This will allow mowing to take place at a time that 
better supports the revitalization of the canal 
banks and serves as a model for proper 
maintenance.



Utilization of the Defender Max on Creek 
Inspections and Cost Share BMPs
• This UTV allows for a full day of work with multiple objectives, starting with a creek inspection in 

the morning and concluding with a land-smoothing contract survey in the afternoon—all in a 
single trip.

• Given the current departmental setup, this scenario would require me to first transport the boat to 
the inspection site, complete the creek inspection, then return all the way back to the garage to 
retrieve the four-wheeler—only to head back to the same location to conduct survey work for a 
cost-share contract.

• I could carry the boat with the UTV and then detach the boat, shoot the surveys and hook back up 
and return without multiple trips that would be overlapping areas and increasing travel cost.



Reduction of Wear and Tear
• This purchase provides the department with a second vehicle and helps reduce mileage on 

the truck.
• It also provides the department with the ability for staff to attend meetings and other staff to 

have the capability to still navigate the county and complete field work.



Conclusion 

• This vehicle provides the department with essential capabilities, including reducing the 
need for additional resources in other drainage lines by serving as a versatile piece of 
equipment for completing various tasks.

• It offers the capability to reduce time spent in the field by enabling the completion of 
multiple tasks in a single trip. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:  May 5, 2025 
 
 
ITEM:       Washington County FY26 Recommended Budget Presentation & Budget 

Message, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will be presenting Washington County’s recommended budget for FY26 at 
this meeting.  Budget books will be given to you on Monday night. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 

































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   8 
 
       DATE:     May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Commissioners or Staff 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a)  Capital Project Update, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 
 

 
 Department Head Reports from April 2025 (see attached) 
 Statistic Reports (see attached) 
 Register of Deeds Roll-up Summary (see attached) 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
May 5, 2025 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
  
Washington County Recreation hosts tee-ball and coed flag football.  The children are learning 
the fundamentals of each sport.  We also have karate each Tuesday  at 7:00 PM.  The basketball 
teams are preparing for the State tournament in Greensboro in June. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
This month the Elections Office has been busy packing for the move and updating voter 
registration applications. Also, voters have been coming into the office requesting Photo ID 
pictures. 

 

Library 

Nate King 
  
No report submitted. 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. Our newest Tax Clerk, Ariel Lesesne started on April 24th.  
2. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) – sending 

tax information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding 
attorney fees and/or suit cost.  

3. Completed tax certifications for several attorneys.  
4. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 

refunds, releases, addressing corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles. We had several requests that appealed the value, several where the tag 
had been turned in and several that had been charged taxes for being in a town, but 
they were not in a town. This takes up a lot of Christal’s time.  

5. Hollie continues to verify PINs for Deed filings and assign addresses in GIS – we 
had several address requests. We have a variation of these daily.  

6. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

7. The Statistical report was submitted. 
8. The Notice of Lien/Debt Setoff letters were mailed April 25th. This creates a lot 

of phone calls and some office visits.  
9. The office remains busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, and 

exemption questions. 
10. Rosa, Jerrian, and Hollie remain busy with the processing of the Business 

Personal Property forms and Abstract – Individual Personal Property forms.  
11. Hollie continues to work on deed transfers and estate transfers, and she assists 

at the front counter as needed.  
12. Christal continues to work with the queues with NCVTS.  
13. Submitted the tax office and revaluation budgets.  

 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued    28  (issued EMTOC permit) 
Zoning Requests     2 ( Special Use, Variance) 
Floodplain reviews     2 
Plan/Map  Reviews     5 
  
Issued CO to Service Transportation on Highway 64 West 
 
April 1     -   Con Ed -Crawlspace encapsulation class 
April 3          Budget meeting with Admin/Finance 
April 7          Commissioner’s Meeting – Text Amendment and Re-zoning Commercial 
April 7  and 21  Swamp Hogs meeting with Admin staff 



 

April 4, 11, 25    Tyrrell County per contract 
Permitting has increased a great deal in Tyrrell County at onset of warmer weather, per Katelynn 
Spencer 
April 17         Planning Board 
 
Fire Watch continues at Washington Regional Medical Center 
Work on NFIP/CRS  continues for County and three municipalities 
Conference calls with Town of Creswell re: Faze II power and zoning; Town of Plymouth re:  
request for sober living rental property 
                                                
Complaint regarding carport too close to property line at Emerald Lane – ongoing dispute 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Landfill 
Hakeim Blakeney 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
No report submitted. 
  
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
Mediacom: Have not heard back from Mediacom. They were supposed to draw out a plan to 
replace cable in the Courthouse using the stairwell where they will be able to branch off at each 
floor. 
 
Tax Office Software Migration: Ran conversion programs on tax data. Put in Google folder for Cox 
& Company to review for any additional format changes. As of this date, all tax data has been given 
to Keystone to begin testing with software.  
 



 

FY24 911 Grant: Waiting for reimbursement of $86,365.23.  
 
FY26 911 Grant: Attend workshop March 26. Waiting to receive quotes from vendors to send to 911 
Board by May 1 to determine eligibility.  
 
NCDIT: Notification that Telcom companies will no longer be required to provide copper landline 
services. Need to transition of SIP lines by December 2025. 
 
--Assist Archie with log-in on MDT. 
--Troubleshoot issue with ups in Tax. Needs to be replaced-get quote and send to Sherri. 
--Troubleshoot issue with Google Drive with Keystone. 
--Run all tax conversion programs. Compare history to procedures & move files to Google 
   Drive. 
--Work with WSI to troubleshoot issue with remote access to recorder. 
--Complete and submit 2026 911 Grant Abstract. 
--Write letter and submit to 911 Board to reconsider purchase of 4th position in 911. 
--Meet with SSG and Jason to discuss needs for 911 Center move. 
--Explain/Train Harley on EMAG process. Explain consent form users will need to sign  
   required by Verizon. 
--Review age of computers in Sheriff’s office with Archie-suggest to replace in FY25-26. 
  Get quotes and email to Sheriff. 
--Discuss with Bill (MCA) issues with Fire Departments having static on radios. MCA  
   scheduling site visit. 
--Reconcile Solarwinds licenses. 
--Multiple meetings with Jason, Harley, architects and vendors concerning 911 move to  
   EMTOC. 
--IT Budget meeting with Curtis, Jason and Missy. 
--Make contact with BrightSpeed concerning Elections and Landfill-forward info to Curtis  
   and Jason. 
--Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
--Attend County Manager group meetings. 
--Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
--Verify CopyPro and VC3 invoices for Finance. 
--Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Airport 
Mary Moscato 

 
 
 



 

Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Safety Briefing  

• No issues  
 

Budget Review  
 
Work Order Review  

• All departments are using the new work order system.  
• We have completed 52 work orders.  

 
Preventive Maintenance Schedule  

• All PM’s are up to date.  
 

Project Updates  
• The Courthouse roof project has been completed.  
• Finished installing signs for DSS.  
• 7 backflow preventers are to be installed on 4-30-2025  

 
Staffing and Training  

• I have one Maintenance person leaving to work for the Town of Roper.  
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
  

1. Our air conditioning unit has been replaced. Thank you, maintenance.  
 

2. April 1 to April 22, 2025: 3 Marriage Licenses issued.  
5 Death Certificates Filed  

          14 Different Copies of Birth Certificates issued 
 

3. There has been an increase for copies of Birth Certificates and Marriage Certificates due 
to the Real ID driver’s licenses.  
 

4. Business as usual.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

  



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

     APRIL 2025 

Reporting Period: 



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,716,260.60$  359,027.43$   252,118.91$   2,106,482.61$    700,876.18$      101,266.77$   382,996.66$       7,126,446.49$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (17,589.09)$       -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                      (19,877.53)$                          

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 3,143.33$          758.09$           282.21$           7,393.01$            1,264.21$          763.50$           269.01$               13,958.30$                           

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      1.85$                   345.61$           18.24$             -$                       3,333.51$          2,745.48$       13,437.51$         19,882.20$                           Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            20,694.17$        4,317.62$       2,834.21$       24,967.22$          8,307.65$          1,082.98$       4,279.06$            68,721.94$                           

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                (205.23)$             -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                      -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    37.18$                7.86$                3.20$                88.08$                  13.30$                7.04$                2.74$                    160.45$                                 

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     3.38$                -$                  -$                       35.88$                28.65$             148.77$               216.68$                                 Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         24,819.23$        16,739.69$     17,640.25$     14,073.23$          30,405.48$        12,622.34$     1,558,029.67$   1,831,998.37$                     

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 88.76$                56.61$             118,382.20$   651.67$                99.63$                65.62$             34,588.38$         154,513.47$                         

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       6,368.56$          3,241.20$       47,996.24$     3,080.20$            5,214.38$          1,967.57$       56,293.22$         396,619.75$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               237.18$              185.25$           121.76$           99.19$                  263.76$              159.57$           272.86$               1,939.97$                              

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    0.91$                   0.70$                0.16$                1.99$                    0.59$                   1.40$                1.10$                    13.03$                                    

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               337.46$              331.52$           181.50$           112.78$                253.18$              228.61$           437.85$               2,713.11$                              

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                      -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 921.61$              2,654.05$       4,626.74$       2,101.07$            3,111.61$          4,774.56$       7,453.12$            25,725.84$                           

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      1,755,116.52$  387,669.01$  444,205.62$  2,159,051.05$   753,179.36$     125,714.09$  2,058,209.95$   -$                  -$                -$                  9,623,032.07$                     

Initiated 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  $0 -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  $0 -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         85,475.57$        89,228.29$     70,231.90$     88,471.75$          91,033.26$        86,763.04$     109,370.55$       711,740.34$                         

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       112,884.94$      42,147.49$     48,258.61$         961,070.74$                         

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                      -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       112,884.94$      42,147.49$     48,258.61$         -$                  -$                -$                  961,070.74$                         

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                      -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            1,037.97$          -$                  23.32$                 -$                  5,004.08$                              

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            1,037.97$          -$                  23.32$                 -$                  -$                -$                  5,004.08$                              

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         36,559.47$        10,230.76$     9,486.77$       64,140.63$          26,292.82$        944.88$           187.41$               0 166,391.64$                         

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            24,831.41$        4,732.93$       741.70$           40,327.43$          6,814.78$          910.88$           421.22$               80,804.56$                           

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      2,262,700.95$  571,354.54$  595,516.97$  2,559,548.44$   991,243.13$     256,480.38$  2,216,471.06$   -$                  -$                -$                  11,642,790.53$                  

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC I am in contact with Albemarle Beach Solar.  They have a buyer and the sell is expected to be finalized in March. All taxes will be paid at that time, per ABS. 

VL Group A, LLC The 2024 taxes are delinquent but we have had inquiry from the company for the delinquent balance. We are expecting payment in March. 

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments received, however we are expecting payment in March. 

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  I have been told that with the sell of Albemarle Beach Solar we should receive payment for all.

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91 6.97 7 6.85 7.56 8.85 8.03 6.02 30

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      71,361$      71,127$    71,217$   70,934$   70,916$   71,139$     71,191$    640,607$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      47,445$      47,580$    45,855$   54,570$   73,935$   63,900$     37,260$    498,015$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        2,170$        2,135$      1,470$      1,680$      1,785$      1,785$       2,415$      17,570$          

 Number of Abatements 18 9 4 9 4 5 13 62                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        413$           1,493$      186$         1,075$     2,830$     12,012.50$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 14.14 13.16 12 13 16 13 13 126.880

Number of Customers 2682 2676 2679 2670 2673 2665 2667 2670 2672 24,054

New taps 2 2 1 0 1 1 0 0 2 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$   $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   4,844.65$   43,601.85$             

0

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131 148 151 115 148 179 218 138

WC Transported 124 95 120 113 87 112 143 167 100 1061

WC Refusals 37 36 28 34 30 36 36 51 38 326

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3

SNF to Doctors 112 94 132 199 149 177 162 129 118 1272

Hospital Discharges 13 9 19 13 6 15 22 6 12 115

EMS Back Up 4 5 6 6 2 8 6 5 5 47

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 51 69 51 39 72 61 76 536

TC Transported 36 41 39 52 35 30 55 44 55 387

TC Refusals 15 25 12 15 16 9 17 17 21 147

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



43%

13%

22%

16%

6%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 67.89 53.79 47.32 42.05 59.86 72.73 538.59

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 43.95 6.19 0.27 13.36 0 10.25 210.20

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 15.85 1.51 0.69 1.36 0.94 15.93 38.68

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 149.03 34.31 35.45 39.55 49.34 56.81 488.53

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 4.57 0.77 3.81 2.00 0.76 4.90 38.86

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   2,043.50$   1,240.60$   5,243.50$   5,688.80$   2,493.50$   3,142.80$   3,234.00$   $32,829.80

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         50.00$         25.00$         100.00$       25.00$         75.00$         75.00$         400.00$       $1,075.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       725.00$       75.00$         -$             375.00$       375.00$       375.00$       350.00$       $3,175.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             562.50$       262.50$       $1,233.34
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         -$             10.00$         -$             -$            $70.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $2,828.50 $1,350.60 $5,353.50 $6,098.80 $2,953.50 $4,155.30 $4,256.50 $0.00 $0.00 $38,383.14

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24-25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

86%

3%

8%
3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 58 78 78 73 69 61 496
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 28 23 22 7 4 21 134
New Member Forms Submitted 8 1 5 2 1 2 19
Center-Sponsored Events 450 396 375 428 274 315 308 2546
Special Events 149 113 144 207 144 208 143 1108
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Exercise Room 64 57 62 59 50 54 62 408
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Yoga 8 5 4 4 5 5 8 39
Chair Exercise 51 39 48 39 12 21 29 239
Line Dance 8 HOLD 24 18 9 4 27 90
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 14 18 16 5 6 1 73
Drop-in Activities 16 25 34 27 56 20 25 203
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Roper Classes 14 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 14
Creswell Classes 10 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 10

YTD Total
1003 987 989 1131 884 783 602 0 0 0 0 0 6379

Congregate Meals Served 244 237 279 294 231 208 1493
Home-Delivered Meals Served 759 750 710 837 653 575 602 4886

YTD Total
748.00$  2,754.58$  486.50$   100.00$  32.00$     55.00$    60.00$     385.00$   -$            -$            -$        -$     4,621.08$   

Congregate Donations to AC $69.00 $27.24 $72.50 168.74$       
MOW Donations to AC $550.00 $308.00 $205.00 1,063.00$   
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     55.00$         50.00$      80.00$     7.00$        30.00$    50.00$     45.00$      397.00$       
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     2,364.34$  159.00$    20.00$     25.00$     25.00$    10.00$     340.00$   2,992.34$   

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 56 67 51 53 40 51 57 0 0 544 544
Male 34 34 48 30 41 30 33 28 36 43 357

Female 8 8 8 10 11 8 8 6 10 6 83

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 15 15 13 11 6 5 8 101 101

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
US PRISON TRANSPORT 

440

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP               Male

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 998 1022 929 915 854 983 787 928 0 0 8521

Law Enforcement 853 755 776 676 728 679 706 559 711 6443
Animal Control 73 89 77 79 47 33 53 47 53 551

EMS 179 154 169 174 140 142 224 181 164 1527

Reported Incidents 31 10 41

Total Arrests 5 10 0 0 0 15

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 2 6 0 5 1 8 29

Felony Arrests 10 0 7 1 3 4 2 27

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 21 48 20 42 42 41 0 0 0 265

Criminal Papers Served 17 4 7 4 8 14 10 64

Civil Papers Served 34 17 41 16 34 28 31 201

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 39 31 29 18 25 42 0 0 220

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 19 6 8 1 9 7 57
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 20 25 21 17 16 35 163

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 9 19

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERIFF

FY24-25

6%

18%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



76%

EMS

200

250

201

163

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
   
       DATE:     May 5, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 

 



 
DRAFT 

 

                        
April 7, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, April 7, 
2025, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Ann 
C. Keyes, Tracey A. Johnson, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. 
Also, present were County Manager/ County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason 
Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  
 
 Chair Phelps noted that there was an outstanding crowd here tonight.  He was glad to see 
everyone.  He let them know that public interaction is always welcome. 
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order. Commissioner Spruill gave the invocation.  Chair 
Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   None. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda. Commissioner Keyes 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to approve/disapprove all 
items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at 
the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Regular Session Minutes:  March 3, 2025 & Special Called Meeting Minutes: March 21, 2025 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Proclamation 2025 – 004 Two Lights for Tomorrow 
d) Interlocal Agreement with Chowan & Gates for Feasibility Study Agreement for  
  Regional Jail Facility 
e) Audit Contract 
f) Revised Pay Tables  

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner 

Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:   Mr. Jimmy Jones, 51Cardinal Lane, said he is still here talking about 

Cardinal Lane and trying to get help to make it a State Road and have it paved. Mr. Jones said he needed 
another meeting (pointed at Ms. Keyes) because he has more information. Also, he is not happy with 
trash pickup; they are tearing up the road. 

 
Mr. Jack Shutz, Cardinal Lane, also talked about Cardinal Lane and wanted it to be paved.  
 
Commissioner Keyes said he was referring to her when she was EM/Planning and Safety 

Director. 
 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW: Ms. Bennett, Clerk to Board swore in the 

Commissioners as the Board of Equalization and Review.  Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator was 
unable to attend tonight; however, she asked Ms. Bennett to report to the Board that there are no appeals 
at this time.   

   



 
DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recess the Board of E&R to May 5, 2025, at 6:00 
PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street. Commissioner Spruill seconded. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING—VACANT SCHOOLS/DEPARTMENT RELOCATION:  Mr. Kelly 

Chesson, ED Director spoke to the Board. 
 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing. Commissioner Walker 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kelly Chesson, ED Director went over the results of the community interest survey that he 

posted to Facebook.  These results were given to the Commissioners in their package; however, Mr. 
Chesson went over them for the public. 



 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
Mr. Earnell Purington, 276 Downing Road, Roper representing the non-profit WCU Alumni 

Association spoke to the Board. The Association was formed March 2, 1992 to keep the legacy of the 
school alive.  It provides scholarships to high school students in the County. (over $30K) They also 
make donations to the food pantry, DSS, and to WCS for student supplies. Their purpose is also to 
preserve accurate records of the school’s history.  They work to promote camaraderie between all 
students. They need to have a place for their Association to meet and plan for the future.  They would 
like to purchase the Multi-Purpose Room on the site of Roper Union Middle School. It would serve as 
their headquarters. 



 
DRAFT 

 

 
Ms. Shamica Sanders, 12025 Hwy 32 N, Roper. She is President of SIMP, est. 2013, a non-profit 

organization that provides various camps for kids, etc. They need a facility to be a safe haven for the kids 
which are increasing in numbers. SIMP would like the old Roper Gym. They can possibly get grants to 
pay for it. She said the kids need a safe place to go.  Commissioner Johnson asked Ms. Sanders if she was 
talking about the stand-alone gym. Ms. Saunders said yes. 

 
Ms. Vanessa Joyner, 346 Roxie Reese Road, Plymouth, was here representing Meals on Wheels.  

She thinks Plymouth High School would be better for that since most of their homebound clients are in 
Plymouth. Volunteers are hard to get and they do not want to inconvenience them too much.   

 
Ms. Renee’ Collier, 154 Newland Road, Roper, Washington County Senior Center Director 

stated that various seniors asked her to convey that they would like the Senior Center closer to Roper 
making it centrally located. 

 
Mr. Travis Spruill, 430 Monroe Street, Plymouth, works with Washington County’s Recreation 

Department and said they can transition their programs to all three towns. Participation is growing in 
karate, pickle ball, and tee ball. There needs to be more done for the kids to keep them off the street. 
Commissioner Walker asked about the areas in which he is interested.  Mr. Spruill said they need the 
PHS fields and maybe the Creswell field. 

 
Ms. Paulique Horton, 992 St. Davids Road, Creswell spoke about the community as a whole.  

There needs to be after-school activities.  They need to be trained for a good job.  We need to empower 
our children. Our teachers need a place to stay. Kids need to be safe. Creswell schools do not need to be 
sold. 

 
Ms. Joyce Holloway, Fairfield Road, Greenville and in Roper represents AGENC.  They bring 

the arts to the community. AGENC would like WCU to be retained for community use and events.  
 
Mr. Lloyd Jones, Jr., Roper, said he is concerned about election headquarters moving. He gave 

Dora Bell props for being the best Elections Director!  He said the County should leave the Board of 
Elections in Roper.   

 
Ms. Joy Davenport, 738 Old Cherry Rd., Creswell, likes the idea of our youth having somewhere 

to go and something to do. We need to create more recreation for the youth, not the adults.  If we do not 
have something here, they will go to another town to participate.  Also, we need to have security to keep 
them safe at recreation activities.  

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Walker 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Mr. Potter spoke to the Board regarding the following memo he sent to the Board.  



 
DRAFT 

 

 
 



 
DRAFT 

 

 
 



 
DRAFT 

 

 
Mr. Potter said that staff is asking that the Board take action tonight on choosing the Roper 

Middle School site to move forward with moving Elections now and continue to look at PHS.  Elections 
may be housed in the Multi-Purpose Building temporarily due to logistical hurdles now and move into 
the main building at a later time. Space is being requested by others to use that room also. 
 

Commissioner Spruill said that if at all possible, find the space for Elections inside the school 
rather than move them two times. 



 
DRAFT 

 

 
Commissioner Johnson talked about the need to have a place for drive-up voting for citizens with 

disabilities.  
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to utilize the Roper Union Main School (not the 
Multi-Purpose Building). Commissioner Walker seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING— ZONING ORDINANCE--CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT:  Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety spoke to the Board. 
 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to open the public hearing. Commissioner Spruill 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Pittman, Planning/Safety Director said he is bringing forth a text amendment for the Board’s 

approval.  This is an opportunity for change.  
 



 
DRAFT 

  



 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
Mr. Pittman said it is the recommendation of the Washington County Planning Board that the 

Washington County Board of Commissioners adopt the revision of Article 3.B: Corridor commercial 
District to include new language in Section G. of the Zoning Ordinance to include areas where no public 
sewer is available, and the changes to the Special Use and Allowed Uses listed.   

 
Commissioner Keyes noted that Mr. Mitchell Patrick was in the audience (our county sewer 

expert).  Mr. Patrick had no comment. 
 
Commissioner Spruill asked Mr. Pittman to thank the Planning Board for their efforts in trying to 

move the County forward. 
 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Spruill 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Potter discussed the following Ordinance ORD-066, An Ordinance of the Washington 
County Board of Commissioners Approving a Text Amendment to Article 3(B) (Corridor Commercial 
District) of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance. [A signed copy is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.]
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve ORD-066 as presented above.  
Commissioner Keyes seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING— REQUEST FOR CHANGE IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION:  Mr. 
Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety spoke to the Board. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing. Commissioner Spruill 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Pittman noted that this request was contingent on the approval of the previous Ordinance.  

There were no questions based on what was in their Agenda package. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Spruill 
seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Potter discussed Ordinance, ORD-067, Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning Map of 
Washington County to Rezone a Portion of Parcel 687.00-49-3872 South-East of the Intersection of US64 
and NC 45. [A signed copy is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.] 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve ORD-067 as presented. 
Commissioner Keyes seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, spoke to the 
Board about the following. 
 
TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY BOARD 
 

Mr. Lou Manring has recently resigned from the TTA board.   The TTA Board met 
Tuesday, March 25, 2025 and unanimously voted to have Mr. Mark Pardue replace Mr. 
Manring.  Mr. Pardue is the curator of the Roanoke River Maritime Museum and serves on 
several boards, including the Museum of the Albemarle.  He also serves on the America 250th 
Committee and the county’s new Economic Development Council.  As such, he will make a 
valuable member of the TTA board.   
  

The TTA Board is requesting the Commissioners’ approval of the TTA’s nomination  of 
Mr. Mark Pardue. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to appoint Mr. Mark Pardue to the Travel & 
Tourism Authority Board.  Commissioner  Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.   

 
Commissioner Spruill asked for an explanation of BA#2025-091.  Mr. Potter said this is 

the difference between 2 attorneys--himself and Mr. Bardill, our foreclosure attorney.  His 
contract needs to be pre-audited by the Finance Officer.  Commissioner Spruill asked if funds are 
allocated out of the general fund.  Ms. Dixon said yes and no one can draw from that account 
without her or Ms. Dunlow’s (Deputy Finance Officer) signature.  

 
Commissioner Spruill asked about fund 10-3270-000 Occupancy Tax.  Why is that $0?  

Ms. Dixon said it is a one-time a year entry at the end of the year that goes to the TTA 
(according to GASBY standards).   You will see it in Fund 63.  She will book backwards into the 
General Fund at the end of the fiscal year. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 
2025-82 to 2025-92 as presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
Mr. Potter said the County will open bids tomorrow on the Pea Ridge Water Main project 

and on the elevator project for the courthouse later this month. Staff is working on a wide array 
of capital projects.  He is preparing the budget that will be presented at the Board of 
Commissioners’ Meeting on May 5, 2025. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson noted that the NCACC District 1 Meeting will be in June in 
Camden County.  She also said she spoke at a Rural Summit on BEAD (broadband in rural 



DRAFT 

 

counties). Commissioner Johnson stated that Mr. Reginald Speight now works with the Dept. of 
Commerce. 

 
Commissioner Walker said he appreciated the comments from the citizens tonight. 
 
Commissioner Keyes said the same.  She also said she has had an NCACC virtual 

meeting since our last Board meeting and attended many other meetings in and around the 
county. 

 
Commissioner Spruill participated in a ZOOM call from folks in our mountains and they 

talked of their devastation.  Counties are bankrupt. He asked everyone to keep them in their 
prayers.  It will be many years before they can rebuild. 

 
Chair Phelps thanked everyone for participating in the BBQ dinner in the Creswell area 

and in the ball games. He heard there were about 400 folks in town. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to come out of Closed Session.  Commissioner Spruill 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

 Commissioner Spruill asked for update on EMTOC.  Mr. Squires said Mr. Potter has the contract 
on his desk.  Everything is moving along. A groundbreaking may be no more than 2 months out.  
 
 Mr. Potter said he was told the General Assembly was going to pass a bare-bones budget before 
Good Friday.  When they come back after Easter, they will add items back into their budget. 
        
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Keyes 
 seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

_____________________________     _______________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC         Carol V. Phelps 
                      Clerk to the Board                        Chair 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda May 5, 2025
	5-5-2025 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accts
	RESO 2025-006 EMS Week
	RESO 2025-007 Proclamation Clerks to the Boards of County Comm Week
	RESO 2025-008 Proclamation Police Week 2025
	RESO 2025-009 Older Americans Month
	ROW 16-1-Two-Party-Utility-Primary-and-Secondary-Highways-Non-C-A (2)
	5-5-2025 Item 2 (public forum)
	5-5-2025 Item 3 Dept. Info Update-Tax Office
	Tax Analyst Draft Position Org Chart Tax Office Duties
	5-5-2025 Item 4 Board of E&R
	5-5-2025 Item 5 Local Match Request for UTV Purchase
	BOCC MEMO UTV
	UTV Discussion
	UTV Purchase Discussion
	Utilization of the Defender Max on Maul Creek
	Utilization of the Defender Max on Creek Inspections and Cost Share BMPs
	Reduction of Wear and Tear
	Conclusion 

	5-5-2025 Item 6 Budget Presentation
	5-5-2025 Item 7 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments and Transfers 5-5-25 Board Meeting
	5-5-2025 Item 8 Other Items
	Reports for 5-5-2025 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	Statistical Report May Meeting 2025
	Register of Deeds Summary Roll-Up
	5-5-2025 Item 9 Closed Session
	DRAFT 4-7-2025 Minutes jjb

	NCDOT Route Number(s): SR 1301, SR 1122
	NCDOT Project Number (if applicable): Roper Interconnection Repairs
	County Name: Washington
	Second Party Company (or individual) Name of facility owner/operator: Washington County
	Second Party mailing address (street): 116 Adams Street, PO Box 1007
	Day of Month (by DOT personnel): 
	Month (by DOT personnel): 
	2-digit year (by DOT personnel): 
	Second Party Name: 
	Second Party Name (continued): 
	NCDOT Route Number(s) and Road Name(s) as applicable: SR 1301 (Cross Road), SR 1122 ( W. Buncombe Street)
	describe location along the identified Route(s): at the intersection of SR 1301 with SR 1330, 
	describe location along the identified Route(s) continued: SR 1122 with SR 1126, and SR 1122 and SR 1121
	description of installation in right of way: 6-inch and 8-inch water main and valve replacements at three locations within the right of way of 
	description of installation in right of way-continued: approximately 40 linear foot of 6-inch water main and 20 linear foot of 8-inch water main.
	description of installation in right of way- continued 2: 
	Second Party mailing address (city, state, zip): Plymouth, NC 27962
	Division Engineer Signature: 
	Attest or Witness Signature: 
	Attest or Witness (Printed Name): 
	Attest or Witness Title: 
	Second Party Authorized Signature: 
	Second Party Authorized Name (printed): Mr. Curtis Potter
	Second Party Position Title: County Manager


